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ANNEX

UNITED STATES DISTaICT COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

Holding d Criminal Term

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v.

ABDEL BASSET ALl AL-MEGRAHI,
A/K/A ABDELBASET ALl MOHMED,
A/K/A ABDELBASET ALl MOHMED AL
A/K/A "MR. BASET",
A/K/A ARMED KHALIFA ABDUSAMAD;

LAMZN KHALIFA FHlMAH,
A/K/A AL AMIN KHALIFA FHlMAH,
A/K/A "MR. LAMIN"

:
:

MEGRAHI, :
:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:

INDICTMENT

Criminal No.

Grand Jury Original

Violations: 18 U.S.C. SS 371,
32, 34, 844(i), 2331, and 2
(Conspiracy to Destroy a Civil
Aircraft of the United States, to
Destroy a Vehicle Used in Foreign
Commerce by Means of an Explosive,
to Kill Naticnals of the United
States Destroying a Civil
Aircraft; Destroying a Vehicle
Used in Foreig~ Commerce by Means
of an Explosive; Killing Nationals
of the United States; Aiding and
Abetting)

The Grand Jury charges that:

COUNT ONE

INTRODUCTION

At all times material to this Indictment, except as otherwise indicated:

1. The Socialist People's Libyan ~rab Jamahiriya (hereinafter referred
to as "Libya") was a nation located on the Mediterranean c;oast of North Africa.

2. The Jamahiriya Security Organization (hereinafter referred to as
"JSO") was the Libyan intelligence service through which Libya conducted a~ts

of terrorism against other nations and repressed the activit~es of Libyan
dissidents abroad.

3. The JSO was divided into various administrations and sections,
including th~ Technical Administration.

4. The Technical Administration's responsibilities included assisting
other administrations within the JSO in developing technical equipment and to
provide technical support to JSO operations in Libya and abroad.

/ ...
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5. In 1984-1985, Said Rashid Kisha (hereinafter referred to as
Said Rashid) was the Assistant Manager of the Techni~al Administration of the
JSO, and in 1985 requested Edwin Bollier of the Swiss firm of
Meister et Bollier to develop timers for the Libyans.

6. From 1985, to on or about 1 January 1987, Said Rashid was the
Director of the' Operations Administration of the JSO.

7. The Operations Administration of the JSO was further divided into
various sections including the Airline Security Section.

8. The Airline Security Section of the JSO was responsible for the
following functionsl

(a) Providinq physical ser.urity for Libyan Arab Airlines (hereinafter
referred to as "LU") aircraft a.nd passengers on domestic and international
flights; and

(b) Overseaing the covert placement and intelligence operations of JSO
officers as employees of Libyan Arab Airlines in various countries, including
the Republic of Malta.

9. During the period ~hi1e Said Rashid was the Director of the
Operations Administration, ABDEL bASSET ALl AL-MEGRAHI was the Chief of the
Airline Security Section.

10. Izzel Din Al Hinshiri (hereinafter referred to as Hlnshlri) at
various times material to tbis Indictment held the following positionsl
Liby~n Minister of Transportation, Minister of Justice, Secretary General to
the People's Committee for Justice in Libya, Director, and Assistant to the
Director, of the Central Security Administration of the JSO.

11. At various times material to this Indictment, beginning in 1985 and
continuing into 1986, Hinshiri received, and caused to be received on behalf
of the JSO, 20 prototype digital electric timers, Model MST-13, capable of
initiating an explosive device, which had been manufactured by the S~iss firm
of Meister et Bollier.

12. Meister et Bollier, Ltd., Telecommunications, a/k/a MESO AG, was a
company located in Zurich, Switzerland, which maintained a close business
relationship with elements of the Libyen military and JSO as a manufacturer
and supplier of technical equipment.

13. ABH was a Libyan front company which sublet office space in Zurich,
Switzerland, from Meister et Bollier.

14. Badri Hasan was a citizen of Libya, who was associated along with
ABDEL BASSET in the activities of ABH in Zurich, Switzerland.

/ ...



A/46/83l
S/233l7
Enqlish
Page 4

15. At various times material in 1988, the Libyan JSO issued Semtex
explosives containinq the substances BDX and PETN, electric blastinq caps or
detonators, and MST-13 diqita~ electric timers capabl~ of initiatinq an
explosion at a predetermined future time, to JSO operatives who enqaqed in
covert terrorist operations outside of Libya, includinq in the ~epublic of
Seneqal.

16. Libyan Arab Airlines was the nationel airline of Libya and was
utilized by the JSO to facilitate its acts of terrorism and repression.

17. Air Malta, the national airline ef the Republic of Malta, was the
handlinq aqent for Libyan Arab Airlines fliqhts to and from Luqa Airport,
Malta, and as such utilized Air Malta luqqaqe taqs on luqqaqe destined for
Libyan Arab Airline fliqhts.

18. Air Malta employees boardinq passenqers and luqqaqe for Libyan Arab
Airline fliqhts were assisted by a representative of Libyan Arab Airlines.

19. The Defendant LAMEN KHALIFA FHIMAH, A/K/A AL AMIN KHALIFA FHIMAH,
A/K/A "MR. LAMIN" (hereiaafter referred to as "LAMEN FHIMAH"), was a citizen
of Libya, and was uti1ized by the JSO in various cover positions, includinq at
various times as the Station Manaqer and representative for Libyan Arab
Airlines at Luqa Airport, Malta.

20. The Defendant LAMEN FHlMAH had access to Air Malta luqqaqe taqs and
the Air Malta facilities used to board passenqers and baqqaqe for LAA fliqhts
from Luqa Airport, Malta.

21. The Defendant ABDBL BASSET ALl AL-MEGRAHI,
A/K/A ABDELBASET ALl MOHMED, A/K/A ABDELBASET ALl MOHMED AL MEGRAHI,
A/K/A "MR. BASET", A/K/A AHMBD KHALIFA ABDUSAMAD (hereinafter referred to as
"ABDEL BASSET"), was a citizen of Libya and was utilized by the JSO in various
positions includinq as the Chief of the Airline Security Section, Operations
Division, and as such was familiar with international airline security
procedures.

22. On 21 December 1988, between 0850 and 0950 hours (CET), Libyan Arab
Airlines Fliqht LN 147 to Tripoli, Libya, on which the Defendant ABDEL BASSET
was travellinq, was boardinq at Luqa Airport, Malta, while Air Malta Fliqht
KM-180 to Frankfurt, Germany, was also open for check-in between 0815 and
0915 hours, CBT.

23. On 21 December 1988, Air Malta Fliqht KM-180 from Luga Airport,
Malta, arrived at approximately 1250 hours, Central Europe Time (CET), at
Frankfurt Airport, Germany.

24. On 21 December 1988, at appr.oximately 1600 hours, CET, Pan Am
Fliqht 103A, with connectinq service to London's Heathrow Airport and Pan Am
Fliqht 103, departed Frankfurt, with an item of luqqaqe that had been
transferred from Air Malta Fliqht KM-l80.
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25. On 21 December 1988, between approximately 1740 hou~s end 1807 hours,
GMT, luggage from Pan Am Flight 103A arriving from Frankfurt, Germany, was
loaded onto Pan Am Flight 103 (United States aircraft number N739PA) at
London'o Heathrow Airport.

26. Pan American World Airways was an airline owned by a corporation
created under the laws ~f a State of the United States and registered under
Chapter 20, Title 49 of the United States Code, which airline flew its
aircraft in commerce between the United States and other countries; and
operated aircraft leased from and owned by a corporation created under the
laws of the State of New York.

27. Pan American World Airways aircraft bearing number N739PA was a
civil aircraft of the United States registered with the Federal Aviation
Administration as required by Title 49 U.S.C. App., Section 1401, and
operating within the special aircraft jurisdiction of the United States as
defined by Title 49 U.S.C. App., Sec. 1301 (38).

28. On 21 December 1988, Pan American World Airways Fliqht 103 was
operati~g in foreign air commerce between London's Heathrow Airport in the
United Kingdom, and John F. r.ennedy Airport in the United States of ~erica.

29. On 21 December 1988, Pan American World Airways Flight 103 curried
two hundred fifty-nine people (two hundred forty-three passengers and sixteen
crew members) who were citizens of the following countries: United States of
America, United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland, Switzerland,
France, Canada, Israel, Argentina, Sweden, Ireland, Italy, Hunqary, S~uth

Africa, Germany, Spain, Jamaica, Philippines, India, Belgium, Trinidad, Japan
and Bolivia.

30. On 21 December 1988, at approximately 7.03 p.m., GKL, Pan American
World Airways Flight 103 broke apart in Scottish airspace at an altitude of
31,000 feet as the result of the detonation of an explosive device in its
forward cargo hold.

31. As the result of the explosion, Pan American World Airways
Flight 103 was destroyed and fell to earth, killing all two hundred fifty-nine
passengers and crew, as well as eleven residents of the Scottish town of
Lockerbie.

THE CONSPIRACY

32. From on or about the summer of 1985 to and inclUding th& date of the
return of this Indictment, within the nations of Libya, Switzerland, Malta,
Germany, the United Kingdom and elsewhere outside the United States of
America, the Defendants ABDEL BASSET and LAMEN FHlMAR, together with others
unknown to the Grand Jury, did unlawfully, wilfully and knowingly, conspire,
combine and agree together and with others to commit terroriat acts against
the United States of America and its citizens.
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33. It was a part of the conspiracy that the Defendants and
co-conspirators would and did place and cause to be placed a destructive
device and substance in and upon Pan American World Airways Flight 103, an
aircraft within the special aircraft jurisdiction of the United States and a
civil aircraft used, operated, and employed in overseas and foreign air
commerce; in violation of Title 18, United States Code, S~ctions 32(a)(~)

and 2.

34. It was a further part of the conspiracy that the Defendants and
co-conspirators would and did damage and destroy, by means of an explosive
device, Pan American World Airways Flight 103, an aircraft in the special
aircraft jurisdiction of the United States and a civil aircraft used,
operated, and employed in overseas and foreign air commerce; in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Section 32(a)(1) and 2.

35. It was a further part of the conspiracy that the Defendants and
co-conspirators would and did damage and destroy by means of an explosive
device Pan American World Airways Flight 103, a vehicle used in foreign
commerce and in an activity affecting foreigu commerce; in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Section 844(i) and 2.

36. It was a furtber part of the conspiracy that the Defendants and
co-conspirators would and did kill nationals of the United States while such
nationals were outside the United States, the killings being murder as defined
by Section llll(a) of Title 18, United States Code; in violation of Title 18,
United States Code, Sections 2331(a) and 2.

37. It was further a part of the conspiracy that the Defendants and
co-conspirators would and did conceal the involvement of the Libyan JSO in
terrorist acts against the United States and its citizens.

THE MANNER AND MEANS USED BY THE CONSPIRATORS TO FURTHER
THE OBJECTS OF THE CONSPIRACY

38. Among the means used by the Defendants and co-conspirators to
further the objects of the conspiracy were the following&

(a\ The Defendants aad co-conspirators, as officers and operatives of
the JSO, utilized the resources and facilities of the nation of Libya,
including the JSO, to carry out their schema to destroy an American aircraft
by means of an explosive device and to kill passengers on board the aircraft.

(b) The Defendants and co-conspirators constructed and caused to be
constructed an improvised explosive device consisting of plastic explosives
containing the substances RDX and PETN, and an MST-13 prototype digital
electronic timer, capable of initiating an explosion at a predetermined future
time, which had been manufactured for and delivered to the Libyan JSO by the
Swiss firm of Meister et Bollier during the period of 1985 to 1986 at the
request of Said Rashid and Hinshiri.

/ 'J ••
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(c) The Defendants and co-conspirators caused the improvised explosive
device to be concealed inside a portable radio caDsette player.

(d) The Defendants and co-conspirators caused the radio cassette player
to be placed inside a brown colored 8amsonite Silhouette 4000 range suitcase.

(e) The Defendants and co-conspirators caused that suitcase to be packed
with clothing, purchased in Malta, to provide the appearance of a normal
travel bag.

(f) The Defendants and co-conspirators caused the suitcase, with the
armed device concealed within it, to be placed in the stream of international
airline passenger luggage at Luqa Airport in the Republic of Malta.

(g) The Defendants and co-conspirators utilized various false identities
to enter Malta and other nations within which the conspiracy was carried out.

(h) The Defendants and co-conspirators utilized their knowledge and
access gained as a result of their employment with Libyan Arab Airlines to
circumvent and evade Maltese customs and airline security at Luqa Airport and
elsewhere; and improperly obtained and utilized the Air Malta baggage t~9s to
cause the interline transfer of the suitcase, containing the c~plosive device,
to other aircraft.

(1) The Defendants and co-conspirators caus~d the suitcase containing
the explosive device to be placed into the bagga~je cOlllpartment of Air Malta
Flight KM-180 at Luqa Airport, Malta; caused the same suitcase to be
transferred from Air Malta Flight KM-180 to Pan American World Airways
Flight 103A in Frankfurt, Germacy; caused the same suitcase to be further
transferred to Pan American World Airways Flight 103 at Heathrow Airport,
London, United Kingdom; caused the detonation of the explosive device during
Pan American World Airways Flight 103's journey to the United States; and
caused the destruction of Pan American World Airways Flight 103 a~d the death
of two hundred seventy persons in the aircraft and on the ground.

OVERT ACTS

39. In order to further the conspiracy and to achieve its objectives,
the following overt acts, among others, were committed in Libya, Switzerland,
Malta, Germany, the United Kingdom, and elsewherer

(a) In or about the summer of 1988, LAMEN FUlMAR stored a quantity of
plastic explosive in his ofiice at the Libyan Arab Airlines Station, Luqa
Airport, Malta.

(b) In or about the fall of 1988, ABDEL BASSET flew from Tripoli, Libya,
to Luqa Airport, Malta, on Libyan Arab Airlines.

I • ••
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(c) On or about 7 December 1988, ABDEL BASSET travelled from Libya to
Malta.

(d) On or about 7 December 1988, ABDEL BASrE~ reqisterea at the Holiday
Inn, Sliellla, Malta, using the name OIABDEL BASET A. MOBMED OI , a OIFLIGHT
DISPACBER" (~) for Libyan Arab Airlines.

(e) On or about 7 December 1988, in Sliema, ~alta, ABDEL BASSET
purchased items of clothing from Mary's House, a retail store located
approz\mately 30~ yards from ~he hotel in which ABDEL BASSET was staying.

(f) On or about 9 December 1988, ABDEL BASSET travelled from Malta to
Zurich, Switzerland"

(g' On or about 15 December 1988, LAMEN FHIMAB made the following
entries in his cHarYI "A.bde~ Basset is coming from Zurich with Salvu ••• 01 and
"take nggs [~]from Air Malta."

(h) On or about 15 December 1988, LAMEN FHlMAR made an addition~l entry
in the "Notes" section of his diaryl OIbring the tags from the Airport
(ABD!!:L BASSET-ABDUL SA.LA.M)."

(i) On or about 15 Decembe~ 1988, LAMEN FHIMAR made an additional entry
in his dier.ry by writinq letters "OK" adjacent to the notation I "ABDEL BASSET
is coming from ~urich with Salvu ••• take toggs [ilil from Air Malta. t,

(j) On or about 17 December 1988, ABDEL BASSET travelled from Zurich,
Switzerland, to Luqa Airport, Malta, and then on to Tripoli, Libya.

(k) On or about 18 December 1988, LAMEN FHlMAR travelled from Malta to
Libya for a meeting with ABDEL BASSET.

(1) On or about 20 December 1988, ABDEL BASSET travelled from Libya to
Luqa Airport, Malta, utilizing the false identity of "AHMED KHALIFA ABDUSAMAD".

(m) On or about 20 Decen~er 1988, LAMEN FHlMAR travelled from Tripoli,
Libya, to Luqa Airport, Malta, on the same flight as ABDEL BASSET.

(n) On or about 20 December 1988, the Defendants and co-conspirators
brought a large, brown hard-sided Samsonite suitcase into Malta.

(0) On or about 20 December 1988, ABDEL BASSET had a meeting with
LAMEN FHlMAR in Malta.

(p) On or about 20 December 1988, ABDEL BASSET registered at the Holiday
Inn, Sliema, Malta, under the false name "ARMED KHALIFA ABDUSAMAD".

(q) On 21 December 1988, at approximately 7.11 a.m., CET, ABDEL BASSET
placed a telephone call to LAMEN FHlMAR from the Holiday Inn, Sliema, Malta.

I • ••
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(r) On 21 Decerllber 1988, ABDEL BASSET, travelling under an assumed name,
departed Luqa Airport, Malta, on LAA Flight LN 147 to Tripoli, Libya.

(s) On 21 December 1988, between 0815 and 0915 hours, CET, the
Defendants and co-conspirators unknown to the Grand Jury, caused a brown,
hard-sided Samsonite suitcase containing an ezp10sive device incorporating an
MST-13 timer, previously ma~ufactured for the JSO, to be introduced as part of
the interline baggage in Air Malta Flight KM-180 to Frankfurt, Germany.

(t) On 21 December 1988, the Defendants and co-conspirators unknown to
the Grand Jury, destroyed aircraft N739PA as charged in Count Three of this
Indictment, the allegations of which are hereby re-alleged and incorporated by
reference.

(u) On 21 December 1Q88, the Defendants and co-conspirators unknown to
the Grand Jury, by ~eans of fire and ezplosives destroyed aircraft N739PA, and
as a direct result thereof caused the death of tw~ hundred seventy persons as
set forth in ~ounts Two and Three, the allegationo of which are hereby
re-alleged and incorporated by reference.

(v) On 21 December 1988, the Defendants and co-conspirators unknown to
the Grand Jury, by means of fire and explosives destroyed aircraft N739PA, and
as a direct rdsult thereof, did murder one h~dred eighty-nine nationals of
the United States, as set forth in Counts Five through One Hundred
Ninety-Three, the allegations of which are hereby re-alleged and incorporated
by reference.

(Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371)

COUNT TWO

1. The Grand Jury hereb~' re-alleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs One through Thirty-one of Count One of this Indictment.

2. On or about 21 December 1988, at Heathrow Airport, London, United
Kingdom, and elsewhere, the Defendants ABDEL BASSET and LAMEN FHIMAH, together
with others unknown to the Grand Jury, wilfully and unlaWfully caused to be
placed a destructive device and substance in and upon aircraft number N739PA,
a civil aircraft of the United States used, operated, and employed in overseas
anu foreign air commerce by Pan American World Airways as Pan Am Flight 103,
en route to the United States from Heathrow Airport, London, United Kingdom,
resulting in the deaths of:

/ ...
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Yictim

John M!chael Gerard Abern
Sarah Margaret Aicher
John Davld Akerstrom
Rona1d Ely Alexander
Thomas Joseph Ammerman
Martin Lawis Apfelbaum
Rachel Marie Asrelsky
Jud!th Ellen Atkinson
William Garretson Atkinson III
Elisabeth Nichole Avoyne
,Jerry Don Avritt
Clare Louis Bacciochi
Harry Michael Bainbridge
Stuart Murray Barclay
Jean J4ary Bell
Julian MacBain Benello
Lawrence Ray Bennett
Phi lip Vernon Bergstrom
Alistair David Berkley
Michael Stuart Bernstein
SteveD Russel' Berrell
Noelle Lydie Berti-Campbell
Surinder Mohan Bhatia
Kenneth John Bissett
Stephen John Boland
Paula Marie Bouckley
Glenn John Bouckley
Nicole Elise Boulanger
Francis Boyer
Nicho~ ,s Bright
Daniel Solomon Browner (Bger)
Colleen Renee Brunner
Timothy Guy Burman
Michael Warren Buser
Warren Max Buser
Steven Lee Butler
William Martin Cadman
Hernan Luis Caffarone
Fabiana Caffarone
. alerie Canady
Gregory Joseph Capasso
Timothy Michael Cardwell
Bernt Wilmar Carlsson
Richard Anthony Cawley
Frank Ciulla
Theodnra Eugenia Cohen
Jason Michael Coker
Eric Michael Cokdr
Gary Leonard Colasanti

Citizenship

USA
USA
USA
Swiss
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
French
USA
British
USA
Canadian
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
U&A
USA
USA
USA
USA
British
USA
French
USA
Israel
USA
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
Argentinian
Argentinian
USA
USA
USA
Swedish
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
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Thomas Concannon
Bridget Concannon
Sean Concannon
Tracy Jane Corner
Scott Marsh Cory
Willis Larry Coursey
Patricia Mary Coyle
John Binning Cummock
Joseph Patrick Curry
William Alan Daniels
Gretchen Joyce Dater
Shannon Davis
GDbriele Della-Ripa
Joyce Christine Dimauro
Gianfranca Dinardo
Peter Thomas Stanley Dix
Om Dikshit
Shanti Dixit
David Scott Dornstein
Michael Joseph Doyle
Edqar Howard Eqqleston III
Siv Ulla Enqstrom
Turhan Erqin
Charles Thomas Fisher IV
Thomas Brown Flanniqan
Kathleen Mary Flanniqan
Joanne Flanniqan
Clayton Lee Flick
John Patrick Flynn
Arthur Jay Fondiler
Robert Gerard Fortune
Staeie Denise Franklin
Paul Matthew Stephen Freeman
Diane Ann Boatman-Fuller
James Ralph Fuller
Ibolya Robertne Gabor
Amy Beth Gallaqher
Matthew Kevin Gannon
Kenneth Raymond Garczynski
Paul Isaac Garrett
Kenneth James Gibson
William David Giebler
Olive Leonora Gordon
Linda Susan Gordon-Gorgacz
Anne Madelene Gorgacz
Loretta Anne Gor.qacz
David Jay Gould
Andre Nikolai Guevorgian
Nicola Jane Hall

Citizenship

Irish
Irish
British
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
US),
Italian
USA
Italian
Irish
Indian
USA
USA
USA
USA
Swedish
USA
USA
British
British
British
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
Canadian
USA
USA
Hungarian
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
South African
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Victim

Lorraine Frances Ha1sch
Lynne Carol Hartunian
Anthony Lacey Hawkins
Maurice Pater Henry
Dora Henrletta Henry
Pamela Blaine Herbert
Rodney Peter Hilbert
Alfred Hill
Ratherlne Auqusta Hollister
Josepblne Lisa Hudson
Sophle Ailetta Miriam Hudson
Melina Rristlna Hudson
Raren Lee Hunt
Roger ElwooeS Hurst
Elisabeth Sophie lvell
!haled Mazir Jaafar
Robert Van Houten Jeck
Rachel Mary Elizabeth Jeffreys
Paul Avron Jeffruys
Kathleen Mary Jermyn
Beth Ann Johnson
Mary Lincoln Johnson
Timothy Baron Johnson
Christopher Andrew Jones
Julianne Frances Kelly
Jay Joseph Kingham
Patricia Ann Klein
Greqory Kosmowski
Elka Etha Kuhne
Minas Christopher Kulukundis
Mary Lancaster
ionaleS Albert Lariviere
Maria Nieves Larracoechea
Robert Milton Leckburq
William Chase Leyrer
Wendy ADne Lincoln
Alexander Lowenstein
Lloyd David Ludlow
Maria Theresia Lurbke
Wllllam Edward Mack
Douglas Euqene Malicote
Wendy Gay Mallcote
Elizabeth Llllian Marek
Louis Anthony Marengo
Noel George Martin
Dlane Marie Maslowsk!
William John McAllister
Lilibeth Tobila MacAlolooy

Citizenship

USA
USA
British
Britisb
British
US"
USA
German
USA
British
French
USA
USA
USA
British
USA
USA
British
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
German
British
British
USA
Spanish
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
German
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
Jamaican
USA
British
USA
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Daniel Emmet McCarthy
Robert Euqene McCollum
Charles Denois MeKee
Bernard Joseph McLauqhlin
.James Bruee MacQuarr ie
Jane Susan Melber
John MerrUl
Suzanne Marie Miazqa
Joseph Kenneth Miller
Jewel Courtney Mitehell
Richard Paul Monetti
Jane Ann Morqan
Eva Ingeborq Morson
Helga Raehael Mosey
John Mulroy
Saan Kevin Mulroy
Ingrid Elisabeth Mulroy
Mary Geraldine Murphy
Jean Aitken Murray
Karen Elizabeth Noonan
Daniel Emmett Oleonnor
Mary Denice OINeill
ADne Lindsey Otenasek
Bryony Elise Owen
Gwyneth Yvonne Marqaret Owen
Robert Plaek Owens
Martha Owens
Sarah Rebecea Owens
Laura Abigail Owens
Robert Italo Pagnueco
Christos Michael Papadopoulos
Peter Raymond Peirce
Michael Cosimo Pescatore
Sarah Susannah Buchanan Philipps
Frederick Sandford Phillips
James Andrew Campbell Pitt
David Platt
Walter Leonard Porter
Pamela Lynn Posen
William Fuqh
Crisostomo Estrella Quiguyan
Rajesh Tarsis Priskel Ramses
Suruchi Rattan
Anmol Rattan
Garima Rattan
Anita Lynn Reeves
Mark Alan Rein
Jocelyn Reina

Citizenship

USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
British
USA
USA
Swedish
British
British
USA
USA
USA
USI.
British
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
Filipino
Indian
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
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¥jctim

Diane Marie Rencevicz
Louise Ann Rogers
Janos Gabor Roller
Edina Roller
Isuzsanna Roller
Hanne Mar:a Root
Saul Mark Rosen
Andrea Victoria Rosenthal
Daniel Peter Rosenthal
Myra Josephine Royal
Arnaud David Rubin
Elyse Jeanne Saraceni
Teresa Elizabeth Jane Saunders
Scott Christopher Saunders
Johannes Otto Schaeuble
Robert Thomas Schlageter
Thomas Britton Schultz
Sally Elizabeth Scott
Amy Elizabeth Shapiro
Mridula Shastri
Joan Sheanshang
Irving Stanley Sigal
Martin Bernard Carruthers Simpson
Irja Syhnove Skabo
Mary Edna Smith
Cynthia Joan Smith
James Alvin Smith
Ingrid Anita Smith
Lynsey ADne Somerville
Rosaleen Leiter Somerville
Paul Somervill9
John Somerville
John Charles Stevenson
Geraldine Anne Stevenson
Hannah Louise Steven~on

Rachel Stevenson
Charlotte Ann Stinnett
Stacey Leanne Stinnett
Michael Gary Stinnett
James Ralph Stow
Elia G. Stratis
Anthony Selwyn Swan
Flora MacDonald Marqaret Swire
Marc Alex Taqer
Hidekazu Tanaka
Andrew Alexander Teran
Jonathan Ryan Thomas
Lawanda Thomas

C.itizemJbl,n

USA
USA
Hunqarian
Hungarian
Hungarian
Canadian
USA
USA
USA
USA
Belgian
USA
British
USA
Gern:an
USA
USA
British
USA
Indian
USA
USA
"SA
USA
USA
USA
USA
British
British
British
BI"itish
Bt-iUsh
British
British
British
British
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
Trinidadian
British
British
Japanese
Bolivian
USA
USA
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Victim

Arva Anthony Thomas
Mark Lawrence Tobin
David William Trilnmer-Smith
Alexia Kathryn Tsairis
Barry Joseph Valentino
Thomas Floro Van-Tienhoven
Asaad Eidi Vejdany
Milutin Velimirovich
Nicholas Andreas Vrenios
Peter Vulcu
Raymond Ronald Wagner
Janina Jozefa Waido
Thomas Edwin Walk~r

Kesha Weedon
Jerome Lee Weston
Jonathan White
Stephanie Leigh Williams
Brittany Leigh Williams
George Waterson williams
Bonnie Leigh Williams
Eric Jon Williams
Miriam Luby Wolfe
Chelsea Marie Woods
Joe Nathan Woods
Joe Nathan Woods, Jr.
Dedera Lynn Woods
Andrew Christopher Gillies-Wright
Mark James Zwynenburg

USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
Argentinian
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
USA
British
USA

(Violation of Title 10, United States Code, Sections 32(a)(2), 34 and 2)

COUNT THREE

1. The Grand Jury hereby re-alleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs One through Thirty-one of Count One of this Indictment.

2. On or about 21 December 1908, at an altitude of 31,000 feet,
approximately in the vicinity of the town of Lockerbie, Scotland, and within
the special aircraft jurisdiction of the United States, as defined by
Title 49, United States Code Appendix, Section 1301(30), the Defendants
ABDEL BASSET and LAMEN FHlMAH, together with others unknown to tbe Grand Jury,
did wilfully and unlawfully damage and destroy, by means of an explosive
device, aircraft number N739PA, a civil aircraft of the United States used,
operated, and employed in overseas and foreign air commerce by Pan American
World Airways as Pan Am Flight 103, en route to the United States from
Heathrow Airport, London, United Kingdom, resulting in the deaths of two
hund~ed seventy victims as specified in Count Two of this Indictment.

(Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 32(a)(1), 34 and 2)

I. " •
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COUNT FOUR

1. The Grand Jury hereby re-alleqes and incorporates by reference
paraqraphs One throuqh Thirty-one of Count One of this Indictment.

2. On 21 December 1988 6 at an altitude of 31,000 feet, approximataly in
the vicinity of the town of Lockerbie, Scotland, the Defendants ABDEL BASSET
and LAMEN FHIMAR, toqether with others unknown to the Grand Jury, did
maliciously damage and destroy by means of an explosive, aircraft number
N739PA, employed as Pan Am Flight 103, a vehicle used in foreign commerce, and
in an activity affecting foreign commerce, which was en route to the United
States from Heathrow Airport, London, United Kingdom.

3. On 21 December 1988, as a direct and proximate result of the du,aqe
and destruction of aircraft N739PA, above and within the town of Lockerbie,
Scotland, and the surroundinq area, the Defendants ABDEL BASSET and
LAMEN FHIMAR, together with others unknown to the Grand Jury, did maliciously
cause the deaths of the two hundred seventy persons ide~tified in Count Two of
this Indictment.

(Violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 844(i) and 2)

COUNTS FIV~ THROUGH ONE HUNDRED NINETY-THREE

1. The Grand Jury hereby re-alleqes and incorporates by reference
paragraphs One through Thirty-one of Count One of this Indictment.

2. At all times material to the Indictment the persons identified as
victims in Counts Five throuqh One Hundred Ninety-Three were nati~nals of the
United States as that t.erm is defined by Title 8, United States Code,
Section 1101(a)(22).

3. On or about 21 December 1988, outside the United States, in the town
of Lockerbie, Scotland, and vicinity, within the United Kingdom and elsewhere,
the Defendants ABDEL BASSET and LAMEN FHIMAR, and others unknown to the Grand
Jury, did willfully, deliberately, maliciously and with premeditation and
malice aforethought kill one hundred eiqhty-nine nationals of the United
States who were the passengers and crew of the aircraft, and whose identities
are reflected in the table set forth belowl

FIVE
SIX
SEVEN
EIGHT
NINE
TEN
ELEVEN
TWELVE

Count Victim

.John Michael Gerard Ahern
Sarah Marqaret Aicher
John David Akerstrom
Thomas Joseph Ammerman
Martin Lewis Apfelbawu
Rachel Marie Asrelsky
Judith Ellen Atkinson
William Garretson Atkinson III
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Count

THIRTEEN
FOURTEEN
FIFTEEN
SIXTEEN
SEVENTEEN
EIGHTEEN
NINETEEN
TWENTY
TWENTY-ONE
TWENTY-TWO
TWENTY-THREE
TWENTY-FOUR
TWENTY-FIVE
TWENTY-SIX
TWENTY-SEVEN
TWENTY-EIGHT
TWENTY-NINE
THIRTY
THIRTY-ONE
THIRTY-TWO
THIRTY-THREE
THIRTY-FOUR
THIRTY-FIVE
THIRTY-SIX
THIRTY-SEVEN
THIRTY-EIGHT
THIRTY-NINE
FORTY
FORTY-ONE
FORTY-TWO
FORTY-THREE
FORTY-FOUR
FORTY-FIVE
FORTY-SIX
FORTY-SEVEN
FORTY-EIGHT
FORTY-NINE
FIFTY
FIFTY-ONE
FIFTY-TWO
FIFTY-THREE
FIFTY-FOUR
FIFTY-FIVE
FIFTY-SIX
FIF"'Y-SEVEN
FIFTY-EIGHT
FIFTY-NINE
SIXTY
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Victim

Jerry Don Avritt
Harry Michael Bainbridqe
Julian MacBain Benello
Lawrence Ray Bennett
Phi lip Vernon Bergstrom
Michael Stuart Bernstein
Steven Russel1 Berrell
Noelle Lydie Barti-Campbell
Surinder Mohan Bbatia
Kenneth John 9issett
Stephen John Boland
Paula Marie Bouckley
Nicole Elise Boulanqer
Nicholas Bright
Colleen Renee Brunner
Michael Warren Buser
Warren Max Buser
Steven Lee Butler
Valerie Canady
Greqory Josaph Capasso
Timothy Michael Cardwell
Richard Anthony Cawley
Frank Ciulla
Theodora Euqenia Cohen
Jason Michael Coker
Eric Michael Coker
Gary Leonard Colasanti
Scott Marsh Cory
Willis Larry Coursey
Patricia Mary Coyle
John Binninq Cummock
Joseph Patrick Curry
William Alan Daniels
Gretchen Joyce Dater
Shannon Davis
Joyce Christine Dimauro
Shanti Dixit
David Scott Dornstein
Michael Joseph Doyle
Edqar Howard Eqqleston III
Turhan Erqin
Charles Thomas Fisher IV
John Patrick Flynn
ArthUf Jay Fondiler
Robert Gerard Fortune
Stacie Denise Franklin
Diane Ann Boatman··Fuller
James Ralph Fuller

/ ...
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Count

SIXTY-ONE
SIXTY-TWO
SIXTY-THREE
SIXTY-FOUR
SIXTY-FIVE
SIXTY-SIX
SIXTY-SEVEN
SIXTY-EIGHT
SIXTY-NINE
SEVENTi
SEVENTi-ONE
SEVENTi-TWO
SEVENTi-THREE
SEVENTi-FOUR
SEVENTi-FIVE
SEVENTi-SIX
SEVENTi-SEVEN
SEVENTi-EIGHT
SEVENTi-NINE
EIGHTY
EIGHTY-ONE
EIGHTY-TWO
EIGHTY-THREE
EIGHTY-FOUR
EIGHTY-FIVE
EIGHTY-SIX
EIGHTY-SEVEN
EIGHTY-EIGHT
EIGHTY-NINE
NINETY
NINETY-ONE
NINETY-TWO
NINETY-THREF.
NINETY-FOUR
NINETY-FIVE
NINETY-SIX
NINETY-SEVEN
NINETY-EIGHT
NINETY-NINE
ONE HUNDRED
ONE HUNDRED ONE
ONE HUNDRED TWO
ONE HUNDRED THREE
ONE HUNDRED FOUR
ONE HUNDRED FIVE
ONE HUNDRED SIX
ONE HUNDRED SEVEN
ONE HUNDRED EIGHT

Victim

Amy Deth Gallagher
Matthew Kevin Gannon
Kenneth Raymond Garczynski
Paul Isaac Garrett
Kennat~ James Gibson
William Davi~ Giebler
Linda Susan Gor~on-Gorgaez

ADne Madelane Gor~acz

Loretta ADne Gorgaez
David Jay Gould
ADdre Nikolai Guevorqian
Lorraine Franees Halseh
Lynne Carol Hartunian
Pamela Elaine Herbert
Rodney Peter Hilbert
Katherine Augusta Hollister
Melina Kristina Hudson
Karen Lee Hunt
Roger Elwood Hurst
Khaled Nazir Jaafar
Robe.t Van Routen Jeck
Kathleen Mary Jermyn
Beth Ann Johnson
Mary Lincoln Johnson
Timothy Baron Johnson
Christopher Andrew Jones
Julianne Franees Kelly
Jay Joseph Kingham
Patricia Ann Klein
Gregory Kosmowski
Ronald Albert Lariviere
Robert Milton Leckburq
William Chase Leyrer
Wendy ADne Lincoln
Alexander Lowenstein
Lloyd David Ludlow
William Edward Mack
Douglas Eugene Malicote
Wendy Gay Malicote
Elizabeth Lillian Marek
Louis ADthony Marenqo
Diane Marie Maslowski
Lilibeth Tobila MacAlolooy
James Bruee MacQuarrie
Daniel Emmet McCarthy
Robert Euqene McCollum
Charles Dennis McKee
Bernard Joseph McLaughlin
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ONE HUNDRED NINE
ONE HUNDRED TEN
ON~ HUNDRED ELEVEN
ONE HUNDRED TWELVE
ONE HUNDRED THIRTEEN
ONE HUNDRED FOURTEEN
ONE IDJNDRED FIFTEEN
ONE HUNDRED SIXTEEN
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTEEN
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTEEN
ONE HUNDRED NINETEEN
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-ONE
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-TWO
ONE HUNDRED TWE.i:TY-THREE
ONE HUNDnED TWENTY-FOUR
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-SIX
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-SEVEN
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-EIGHT
ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-NINE
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY
ON: HUNDRED THIRTY-ONE
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-~WO

ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-THREE
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-FOUR
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-FIVE
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-SIX
ONE HU'7DRED THIRTY-SEVEN
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-EIGHT
ONE HUNDRED THIRTY-NINE
ONE HUNDRED FORTY
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-ONE
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-TWO
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-THREE
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-FOUR
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-FIVE
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-SIX
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-SEVEN
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-EIGHT
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-NINE
ONE HUNDRED FIFTY
ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-ONE
ONE HU~DRED FIFTY-TWO
ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-THRE.E.
ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-FOUR
ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-FIVE
ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-SIX
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Jane Susan Melber
Suzanne Marie Miasga
Joseph Kenneth Miller
Jewel Courtney Mitchell
Richard Paul Monetti
Jane Ann Morgan
Eva Ingeborg Morson
John Mulroy
Sean Xevin Mulroy
Kar6n Elizabeth Noonan
Daniel Emmett O'Connor
Mary Denice O'Neill
Anne Lindsey Otenasek
Robert Plack Owens
Martha Owens
Sarah Rebecca Owens
Laura Abiqail Owens
Robert Italo Pagnucco
Christos Michael Papadopoulcs
Peter Raymond Peirce
Michael Cosimo Pescatore
Sarah Susannah Buchanan-Philipps
Frederick Sandford Phillips
James Andrew Campbell Pitt
David Platt
WaIter Leonard Porter
Pamela Lynn Posen
William Puqh
Suruchi Rattan
Anmol Rattan
Garlma Rattan
Anita Lynn Reeves
Mark 1>.lan Rein
Jocelyn Reina
Diane Marie Rencevicz
Louise Ann Rogers
Saul Mark Rosen
Andrea Victoria Rosenthal
Daniel Peter Rosenthal
Myra Josephine Royal
Elyse Jeanne Saraceni
Scott Christopher Saunders
Robert Thomas Schlageter
Thomas Britton Schultz
Amy Elizabeth Shapiro
Joan Sheanshang
Irving Stanley Sigal
Martin Bernard Carruthers-Simpson

/ ...
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CQunt

ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-SEVEN
ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-EIGHT
ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-NINE
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-ONB
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-TWO
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-THREE
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-FOUR
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-FIVE
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-SEVEN
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-EIGHT
ONE HUNDRED SIXTY-NINE
ONE HUNDRED EEVENTY
ONE HUNDRE~ SEVENTY-ONE
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY-TWO
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY-THREE
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY-FOUR
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY-FIVE
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY-SIX
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY-SEVEN
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY-EIGHT
ONE HUNDRED SEVENTY-NINE
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-ONE
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-TWO
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-THREE
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-FOUR
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-FIVE
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-SIX
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-SEVEN
ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY-EIGHT
ONE IDTNDRED EIGHTY-NINE
ONE HUNDRED NINETY
ONE HUNDRED NINETY-ONE
ONE HUNDRED NINETY-TWO
ONE HUNDRED NINETY-THREE

Victim

Irja SyhnQve SkabQ
Mary Edna Smith
Cynthia JQan Smith
Jarnes A1vin Smith
CharlQtte Ann Stinnett
Stacey Leanna Stinnett
Michael Gary Stinnett
Jarnes Ralph StQW
Elia G. Stratis
JQnathan Ryan Thomas
Lawanda ThQmas
Arva AnthQny ThQmas
Mark Lawrence ~obin

David Williarn Trimmer-Smith
Alexia Kathryn Tsairis
Barry JQseph ValentinQ
Asaad Eidi Vejdany
Milutin VelimirQvich
NichQlas Andreas VreniQs
Peter Vulcu
RaymQnd Ronald Wagner
Janina JQzefa WaidQ
ThQmas Edwin Walker
Kesha WeedQn
JerQrne Lee WestQn
JQnathan White
Stephanie Leigh Williarns
Brittany Leigh Williarns
GeQrge WatersQn Williarns
BQnnie Leigh Williarns
Eric Jon Williarns
Miriarn Luby WQlfe
Chelsea Marie WOQds
JQe Nathan WOQds
JQe Nathan WOQds, Jr.
Dedera Lynn WQQds
Mark Jarnes Zwynenburg

(ViQlatiQn Qf Title 18, United States Code, SectiQns 2331 and 2)

A TRUE BILL:

FQreperSQn.

(Signed) G. B. Stephens
AttQrney fQr the United States in
and fQr the District Qf CQlumbia


